
  

 

CITY OF LYNDEN  

PARKS DEPARTMENT  
Main Number: (360) 354-6717  

  

  

Parks Committee Meeting Agenda  
City Hall - 300 Fourth Street 
4:00 PM October 19, 2020 

Roll Call 

Action Items 

1. Approval of Parks Committee Minutes- Sept. 21, 2020  

2. Request from Tim Broersma to purchase a parcel of the Dickinson property. (Hope to have 
documents by meeting time) 

3. Forward the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the City and Whatcom County 
Parks to full Council for approval.  

4. Master Plan updates and approval of costs relating to acquisition and development-Set 
desired Level of Service. -Dave Timmer  

5. Recommendation of hours for lights at the Rotary park for winter hours  

Information Items 

6. Discussion of possible funding source for the Recreation Center for needed improvements. 

7. Art Wall Progress  

8. Berthusen Restroom Report: 
-Tiger Construction began work on the project Monday October 12, 2020  
-Restroom delivery scheduled for October 28, 2020  

9. Trail Grant Update  

Items Added 

Next Meeting: November 16, 2020  

1



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

PARKS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
September. 21, 2020 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL: 
Members Present: Mayor Scott Korthuis; Councilors, Ron DeValois, Nick Laninga and 
Mark Wohlrab 
   
Staff Present: City Administrator Mike Martin; Parks Director Vern Meenderinck; 
and Park Admin. Assist. Nancy Norris 

 
2. ACTION ITEMS: 

A. Approval of Parks Committee Minutes- Aug. 17, 2020 
DeValois motioned to approve the minutes, and Wohlrab seconded the motion, 
everyone present concurred.  
Action: The Parks Committee Minutes from August 17, 2020 were approved.   

 
B. Request for lights in the Parking Lot at Bender 

There is no electrical source near the parking lots, the cost would be huge.  
Action: Parks Committee suggested looking into Solar, and if solar is a 
possibility what is the brightness, maintenance, and cost. 

 
C.  Use of the YMCA pool by the Bellingham Swim Club 

Mike Martin explained to the Parks Committee the immediate need to terminate 
the YMCA’s lease agreement, so the City can enter into an intermittent lease 
with the organization, Let’s Pool Together/Bellingham Bay Swim Club.  
Action: Parks Committee agreed to forward their recommendation to bring 
forward the termination of the YMCA lease and the approval of a lease 
contract with the organization, Let’s Pool Together.    

 
D. Decision on how to proceed for the Benson barn project 

The Parks Committee would like to start with the structure of the Barn.  
Action: Additional funds will be explored for including the kitchen and 
restrooms.  

 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS:  

A. Hooligans at Bender 
Continues to be an ongoing problem; but PD presence has decreased the 
amount of complaints significantly.  
Permanent signage with park rules has been added to the Rotary Park.  

2



 

 
 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
www.lyndenwa.org 

 

 
B. Art wall progress 

Crux Construction had planned to be in attendance this afternoon. They are 
ready to donate an 8ft x 20ft concrete wall worth approx. $7000 for the 
community.  
Councilman Wohlrab asked if Crux Construction would be allowed to stamp their 
logo into the concrete wall and a recognition plague of donation? 
Mayor Korthuis acknowledged recognition would be given and asked for Crux to 
include in the preapproval design of the wall where their logo or plague would 
be located.  

 
C. Dickinson property line disagreement with Fairside Condo’s 

Fairside Condo Owners have the understanding their property line is 8ft north of 
the northern bank of the creek. The City’s property description shows the 
property line as being the center of the creek. 
 
A letter was sent to the Fairside Condo Association addressed to Mr. Toby Gelder 
in response to the letter Mr. Gelder had sent to the City regarding  the removal 
signs the Fairside Condo Assoc. had placed on the Dickinson Park property.  
 
The City is in the process of surveying the property, signage will be added to 
Dickinson Park to show park users the Park property boundaries.   

 
D. Berthusen Restroom report:   

Tiger Construction will begin demo early part of October. 
Pushing CXT to have the restrooms delivered earlier, so the building can begin by 
the end of October. 

 
E.  Trail Grant update 

Mayor Korthuis and the city grant writer met with a representative with ROC 
Monday September 21, 2020.  
The Representative from ROC was complimentary on how well prepared the 
grant proposal was written including additions and changes from previous 
proposal.   

 
4.  ITEMS ADDED: None 

 
            Meeting Adjourned: 4:43PM. 

NEXT MEETING DATE 
Parks Committee:  October 18, 2020 

3



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              1 of 7 
 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
 

AND 
 

WHATCOM COUNTY PARKS & RECREATION 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by Whatcom County Parks & 
Recreation Department (County) and the City of Lynden, Washington (City or 
Provider) pursuant to the authority granted by chapter 39.34 RCW, 
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT.   
 

1. PURPOSE: 
The County will provide funding to the City to assist with the provision of 
Senior Services at the Lynden Community Center. This funding is 
intended to provide on-site staffing to assist with the operation of the 
Lynden Community Center. Individual/s hired may be employed by the 
Lynden Council on Aging, a local not-for profit organization that is 
currently under contract with the City.   

 
2. RESPONSIBILITIES: 

WHATCOM COUNTY PARKS & RECREATION RESPONSIBILITIES 
The County will provide funding in 2021 and 2022 for the City to contract 
with the Lynden Council on Aging for provision of staff assigned to the 
Lynden Community Center.  This funding is intended to provide staffing 
and operational support for Senior Services at the Lynden Senior Center.   
 
CITY OF LYNDEN RESPONSIBILITIES 
The City contracts by separate agreement with the Lynden Council on 
Aging to operate and maintain the Lynden Senior Center and its programs 
at the Lynden Community Center.  “Senior Center management”, “Senior 
Center employees”, or “Senior Center staff” referred to herein are 
employees of the Lynden Council on Aging.  The City will utilize the funds 
provided for in this Agreement to contract with the Lynden Council on 
Aging to continue to provide Senior Services Monday through Friday of 
each week from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. at the Lynden Community Center, 
except holidays.  At a minimum, the City and/or the Lynden Council on 
Aging will be expected to provide the following services: 

 
A. Daily On-Site Operations 

4



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              2 of 7 
 

B. Assistance to Senior Center management and staff in order to 
provide a variety of healthy lifestyle programs and activities of 
interest to older adults 

C. Develop safety policies and monitor procedures 
D. Employee and volunteer opportunities to support Senior Center 

operations. 
E. Provide progress reports to the County  
 

In addition the City will continue to provide support to the Senior Center 
including use of the city owned facility located at 401 Grover Street, Lynden, 
Washington, 98264 and/or continued funding to cover programming and 
utilities expenses at the facility. 

 
3. TERM OF AGREEMENT: 

The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2021 through 
December 31, 2022. 

 
4. AVAILABLE FUNDING AND MANNER OF FINANCING: 

The County will provide a total of $61,874 for the twelve (12) month period 
of January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021, and $61,874 for the 
twelve (12) month period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
The City shall invoice the County by the last working day of each month 
during the term of this agreement for services rendered as outlined in 
Section 2. The County shall reimburse the City for twelve (12) equal 
payments in 2021 and twelve (12) equal payments in 2022.  

 
5. ADMINISTRATION: 

The following individuals are designated as representatives of the 
respective parties. The representatives shall be responsible for 
administration of this Agreement and for coordination and monitoring 
performance under this Agreement. In the event such representatives are 
changed, the party making the change shall notify the other party. 

 
A. The City of Lynden representative shall be the City Administrator 
B. Whatcom County’s representative shall be Shannon Batdorf 

 
6. Indemnification by Provider.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 

Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County and its 
departments, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, 
losses and expenses, including but not limited to court costs, attorney's 
fees and alternative dispute resolution costs, for any personal injury, for 
any bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and for any damage to or 
destruction of any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) 
which 1) are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent 

5



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              3 of 7 
 

or otherwise, of the Provider, its employees, agents or volunteers  or 
Provider’s subcontractors and their employees, agents or volunteers; or 2) 
are directly or indirectly arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with 
performance of this Agreement; or 3) are based upon the Provider’s or its 
subcontractors’ use of, presence upon or proximity to the property of the 
County.  This indemnification obligation of the Provider shall not apply in 
the limited circumstance where the claim, damage, loss or expense is 
caused by the sole negligence of the County.  This indemnification 
obligation of the Provider shall not be limited in any way by the 
Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, RCW Title 51, or by application 
of any other workmen's compensation act, disability benefit act or other 
employee benefit act, and the Provider hereby expressly waives any 
immunity afforded by such acts.  The foregoing indemnification obligations 
of the Provider are a material inducement to County to enter into this 
Agreement, are reflected in the Provider’s compensation, and have been 
mutually negotiated by the parties.  

Provider’s initials acknowledging indemnity terms: ________  
 
The County reserves the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the 
defense of any claim, damages, losses or expenses and such participation 
shall not constitute a waiver of Provider’s indemnity obligations under this 
Agreement. 

The Provider agrees all Provider’s indemnity obligations shall survive the 
completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

7. In the event the Provider enters into subcontracts to the extent allowed 
under this Agreement, the Provider’s subcontractors shall indemnify the 
County on a basis equal to or exceeding Provider’s indemnity obligations 
to the County. 

The City is required to provide proof of insurance for the following 
minimum coverage:  

 
A. General Liability coverage @ $1,000,000 per occurrence 
B. Workers Compensation Coverage and listed amounts for bodily injury 

by accident, bodily injury by disease, policy limits. 
C. Directors and Officers coverage if applicable. 
D. Fraud coverage for employees. 

 
The City waives all rights of Subrogation against the County.  The City’s 
insurance is primary and the County’s insurance is non-contributory except as 
required under the terms of Indemnification.  The City shall name Whatcom 
County and its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers as ADDITIONAL 
INSUREDS on their insurance policy. 
 

6



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              4 of 7 
 

The City, in a written contract with the designated contractor that provides 
senior services, shall require the designated contractor to indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless the County to the same extent as required in this 
Agreement.  
 Additionally, the City shall require the designated contractor to carry the 
insurance of Commercial General Liability per occurrence of $1,000,000.00 or 
greater and vehicle insurance of $1,000,000.00 or greater per occurrence.  
The Designated contractor’s insurance shall name the City and Whatcom 
County and its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers as ADDITIONAL 
INSUREDS on the designated contractor’s  insurance policy. The  designated 
contractor  shall provide proof of these insurance requirements  by submitting 
a Certificate of Liability with Endorsements to the City.    The contracting 
organization’s insurance shall waive all rights of Subrogation against the 
County and its insurance shall  be primary and the County’s insurance shall 
be non-contributory.   

 

 
8. TERMINATION: 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon one-hundred and 
twenty (120) days written notice, mailed postage-prepaid by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the party’s last known address for the 
purposes of giving notice under this paragraph. If this Agreement is so 
terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or 
costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the 
effective date of termination. 

 
9. INDEPENDENCE OF PARTIES AND EMPLOYEES: 

The CITY shall be deemed to be the sole operator of the Lynden 
Community Center.  All employees and volunteers engaged with or 
serving in the operation of the Lynden Community Center shall not by this 
Agreement be construed to be employees, agents or volunteers serving 
the County.   

 
10. NONDISCRIMINATION: 

During the term of the Agreement, the CITY, or designated contractor, 
shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local provisions with 
regard to hiring and employment practices, and providing program 
services. 
 
In the event of the CITY’S noncompliance or refusal to comply with the 
above provisions, this Agreement may be rescinded, cancelled, or 
terminated in whole or in part without penalty to the COUNTY. The CITY 
shall, however, be given a reasonable time in which to cure such 
noncompliance. 

 

7



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              5 of 7 
 

11.  NEW CONTRACTOR 
Nothing herein shall prevent the City from entering into a contract with a 
different qualified contractor to perform the services described herein by 
the Lynden Council on Aging, or from performing said services itself. 

 
12. CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS: 

This Agreement may be changed, modified, amended or waived only by 
written agreement executed by the parties hereto. Waiver or breach of any 
term or condition of the Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of any 
prior or subsequent breach. 

 
13. SEVERABILITY: 

In the event any term or condition of this Agreement or application thereof 
to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not 
affect other terms, conditions or applications of this Agreement which can 
be given effect without the invalid term, condition, or application.  To this 
end the terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 

 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the 
parties. All items incorporated herein by reference are attached. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              6 of 7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this ______ 
day of _____________, 20__. 
 
 
APPROVED:CITY OF LYNDEN 
 
 
Dated this ____ day of ________, 20__ 
 
_______________________________ 
By:  Scott Korthuis, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF WHATCOM  ) 
 
 
On this ____ day of _________. 20__, before me personally appeared Scott 
Korthuis to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF LYNDEN and who 
executed the above instrument and acknowledged to me the act of signing and 
sealing thereof. 
 
Given under my hand and official seal this ____ day of __________, _____. 
 
 
______________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Washington 
 
Residing in ___________ 
 
My Commission expires: __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 

City of Lynden - Interlocal Agreement                                                                                                                                              7 of 7 
 

WHATCOM COUNTY 
 
 
___________________________ 
Satpal Sidhu, County Executive 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF WHATCOM  ) 
 
 
 
On this ____ day of _________ 20__, before me personally appeared Satpal 
Sidhu to me known to be County Executive of WHATCOM COUNTY and who 
executed the above instrument and acknowledged to me the act of signing and 
sealing thereof. 
 
Given under my hand and official seal this ____ day of __________, _____. 
 
 
______________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Washington 
 
Residing in _____________________ 
 
My Commission expires: __________ 
 
 
 
 
WHATCOM COUNTY PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 
___________________________ 
Michael McFarlane, Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

10



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
Section of Agenda: consent 
Department: Parks 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☒ No - Not Reviewed 

☒ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☐ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 

Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 

Summary Statement: 

The interlocal agreement between the City and Whatcom County Parks and Recreation Department expires at 
the end of 2020. 
The County and City have had an agreement in place for a number of years, whereby the County agrees to 
provide funding to the City to assist with the provision of Senior Services at the Lynden Community Center. 
This agreement is identical to the one used for years and is a 2 year agreement to extend the agreement 
between the County and the City to provide on-site staffing to assist with the operation of the Lynden 
Community Center. 
The Parks Committee reviewed the agreement at their meeting this afternoon and recommends forwarding 
the agreement to full council for approval 
 
Recommended Action: 

Motion to approve the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the City of Lynden and Whatcom County 
Parks and Recreation and authorize the Mayor’s signature. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

11


	Top
	1.	Approval Sept 2020 minutes
	Minutes Sept. 21, 2020

	2.	Dickinson Parcel Purchase
	3.	Interlocal Cooperative City/Whatcom County Parks
	Interlocal Cooperative Agreement
	ES-Interlocal Cooperative Agreement

	4.	Master Plan update
	5.	Rotary Park Winter Hours
	6.	Rec. Center Improvements
	7.	Art Wall
	8.	Berthusen Restroom Report
	9.	Trail Grant
	Bottom

